
 

 

21 October 2019 

At the conclusion of the Cultural and Community Committee 

 

Transport, Heritage and Planning 
Committee 

 



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 21 October 2019 

  

Agenda 
  
 

 

1.   Disclosures of Interest 

2.   Delegation to the City of Sydney under the NSW Heritage Act 1977 

3.   Fire Safety Reports 

 



 

 

Guidelines for Speakers 
at Council Committees 

 

As part of our democratic process, the City invites members of the community to speak directly to 
Councillors during Committee meetings about items on the agenda. 

To enable the Committee to hear a wide range of views and concerns within the limited time 
available, we encourage people interested in speaking at Committee to: 

1. Register to speak by calling Council’s Secretariat on 9265 9310 before 12.00 noon on the day 
of the meeting. 

2. Check the recommendation in the Committee report before speaking, as it may address your 
concerns so that you just need to indicate your support for the recommendation. 

3. Note that there is a three minute time limit for each speaker (with a warning bell at two 
minutes) and prepare your presentation to cover your major points within that time 

4. Avoid repeating what previous speakers have said and focus on issues and information that 
the Committee may not already know. 

5. If there is a large number of people interested in the same item as you, try to nominate three 
representatives to speak on your behalf and to indicate how many people they are 
representing. 

6. Before speaking, turn on the microphone by pressing the button next to it and speak clearly so 
that everyone in the Council Chamber can hear. 

7. Be prepared to quickly return to the microphone and respond briefly to any questions from 
Councillors, after all speakers on an item have made their presentations. 

Committee meetings can continue until very late, particularly when there is a long agenda and a 
large number of speakers. This impacts on speakers who have to wait until very late, as well as 
Council staff and Councillors who are required to remain focused and alert until very late. At the start 
of each Committee meeting, the Committee Chair may reorder agenda items so that those items with 
speakers can be dealt with first. 

Committee reports are on line at www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au, with printed copies available at 
Sydney Town Hall immediately prior to the meeting. Council staff are also available prior to the 
meeting to assist. 

January 2011 



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 21 October 2019 
 

Disclosures of Interest 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Code of Meeting Practice – May 2019 and the Code of 
Conduct – May 2019, Councillors are required to disclose pecuniary interests in any matter 
on the agenda for this meeting. 

Councillors are also required to disclose any non-pecuniary interests in any matter on the 
agenda for this meeting. 

This will include receipt of reportable political donations over the previous four years. 

In both cases, the nature of the interest must be disclosed. 

Written disclosures of interest received by the Chief Executive Officer in relation to items for 
consideration at this meeting will be laid on the table. 

Local Government and Planning Legislation Amendment (Political Donations) 
Act 2008 

The Local Government and Planning Legislation Amendment (Political Donations) Act 2008 
(“the Act”) requires the disclosure of relevant political donations or gifts when planning 
applications are made to minimise any perception of undue influence. The amendments to 
the Act require disclosure to the Electoral Funding Authority of: 

 a reportable political donation as defined in the Election Funding and Disclosures 
Act 1981 (a donation of $1000 or more made to or for the benefit of the party, elected 
member, group or candidate or made by a major political donor to or for the benefit of 
a party, elected member, group or candidate, or made to the major political donor), or  

 a gift (as defined in the Election Funding and Disclosures Act 1981) to any local 
councillor or council employee (and includes a disposition of property or a gift of 
money or the provision of other valuable or service for no consideration or for 
inadequate consideration) when a relevant planning application is made to a council.  

A donation of less than $1000 can be a reportable political donation if the aggregated total of 
such donations was made by an entity or person to the same party, elected member, group 
or candidate or person. 

1

Item 1.



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 21 October 2019 
 

Delegation to the City of Sydney under the NSW Heritage Act 1977 

File No: X018455 

Summary 

The Minister administering the Heritage Act 1977 (NSW) has asked the City of Sydney to 
approve  delegations under sections 57(2), 169 and 21 of the Heritage Act 1977, to 
nominated positions in Council of the functions of the Minister and the Heritage Council of 
NSW in relation to assessment and approval of minor heritage and archaeology works and 
maintenance to places listed in the State Heritage Register.   

It is anticipated that the making of these delegations will improve the efficiency of the 
approval process for properties listed on the State Heritage Register and, consequently, 
reduce expense and waiting time for applicants making applications for minor works to these 
properties. 

The delegations are listed, conditioned, and limited by the attached Instruments of 
Delegation. 

The Local Government Act 1993 requires a Resolution of Council to approve delegations 
under the Heritage Act 1977 directly to nominated positions in Council. 

  

1

Item 2.



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 21 October 2019 
 

Recommendation 

It is resolved that Council: 

(A) approve the delegations to the nominated positions in the City of Sydney of the 
functions of the Minister and the Heritage Council of NSW under the Heritage Act 1977 
as listed in the Instruments of Delegation shown at Attachments A and B to the subject 
report; 

(B) approve commencement of the operation of the delegations from 1 January 2020 or 
another date determined by the Chief Executive Officer; and 

(C) note that the Instruments of Delegation may be subject to amendment from time to 
time, subject to the approval of the Chief Executive Officer. 

Attachments 

Attachment A. Instrument of Delegation - Heritage Act 1977 (NSW) - Order under 
Section 169 and Section 21 

Attachment B. Instrument of Delegation – Heritage Act 1977 (NSW) – Order under  
Section 57(2)  

2



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 21 October 2019 
 

Background 

1. The NSW Department of Premier and Cabinet, under delegation from the Minister and 
the Heritage Council of NSW, currently carries out assessments exemptions and 
approval of minor works to heritage places and minor archaeology permits. These 
include maintenance, installations of telecommunications equipment, and minor 
investigative excavations. 

2. The ability for the NSW Heritage Council to delegate approvals for maintenance and 
minor works has existed under the NSW Heritage Act since around 2002 but has not 
been taken up, to date, by the City of Sydney due to concerns about the resources 
needed to properly discharge the delegated powers. 

3. The ongoing sale of a large number NSW Government-owned State Heritage Register 
listed properties in the Millers Point area has resulted in a significant increase in the 
volume of applications to develop and maintain State Heritage Register listed 
properties in the Sydney local government area.  The listing of the entire Sydney 
University Camperdown campus on the State Heritage Register, and the extensive 
and ongoing construction activity on the campus, has further added to the number of 
State Heritage Register-related applications. 

4. This involves considerable duplication of work and communication between the City of 
Sydney Planning Assessment Unit and the Office of Environment and Heritage (OEH) 
Heritage Branch. NSW Department of Premier and Cabinet has made a case for 
Council to take up the delegations in order to significantly reduce complexity, save 
time and improve the efficiency and outcomes of the assessment process for 
applicants.   

5. Residents and stakeholders, including Millers Point resident representatives, have 
expressed frustration with the current need for applications to both NSW Department 
of Premier and Cabinet and the City of Sydney for the exemption or approval of very 
minor and appropriate maintenance to their properties. 

6. The NSW Department of Premier and Cabinet is offering to allow the City of Sydney to 
retain fees for such applications within the Sydney local government area. This will 
partially offset the staffing costs required to carry out the work. NSW Office of 
Environment and Heritage has recently sent a submission that quantifies the efficiency 
and cost benefits of its proposal. 

7. The delegation will allow the assessment of minor heritage works to places listed in the 
State Heritage Register to be carried out by in one step by the City of Sydney heritage 
officers rather than the existing two stage process. 

8. In cases where there is a conflict of interest, or where the City of Sydney delegate 
believes that the proposed works are outside the scope of the delegations, the 
application will be referred to the NSW Department of Premier and Cabinet. 

9. The third resolution (C) will allow the delegations to be amended from time to time and 
Council may also give up the delegation in future.  

3



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 21 October 2019 
 

Key Implications 

Strategic Alignment - Sustainable Sydney 2030 Vision 

10. Sustainable Sydney 2030 is a vision for the sustainable development of the City to 
2030 and beyond. It includes 10 strategic directions to guide the future of the City, as 
well as 10 targets against which to measure progress. This report is aligned with the 
following strategic directions and objectives: 

(a) Direction 1 - A Globally Competitive and Innovative City - The delegation will 
enable a quicker 'one-stop' exemption or consent process for heritage works to 
State Heritage Register places. 

(b) Direction 2 provides a road map for the City to become A Leading Environmental 
Performer - The delegation will result in better and more detailed assessment of 
heritage impacts and will better conserve the heritage of the City of Sydney. 

(c) Direction 5 - A Lively and Engaging City Centre - The delegation will make it 
easier for owners of State Heritage Register listed places to maintain their 
buildings and the result will be better conservation and a more attractive city 
centre. 

(d) Direction 6 - Vibrant Local Communities and Economies - The delegation will 
make it quicker and cheaper for households and business to carry out 
maintenance and minor works to their State Heritage Register listed places.  
There is considerable community pride in well-maintained heritage places. 

(e) Direction 7 - A Cultural and Creative City - The city's heritage items are some of 
our most important cultural artefacts.  The proposed delegation will make it 
easier to conserve and maintain them. 

(f) Direction 9 - Sustainable Development, Renewal and Design - This delegation 
will make it easier for owners to appropriately adapt and use their State Heritage 
Register listed places. 

(g) Direction 10 - Implementation through Effective Governance and Partnerships - 
This delegation would comprise an effective partnership with the NSW 
Government to deliver more efficient and timely assessment processes to some 
the most important heritage places in NSW. 

Organisational Impact 

11. The following measures will be put in place to take up, and properly discharge this 
delegation; 

(a) Fees and charges have been put in place for the proposed delegated functions 
for the 2018-2019 financial year. 

(b) An additional heritage specialist has been added to the establishment of the 
Urban Design and Heritage team for the next three years.  Workloads arising 
from the delegation will be monitored through the City’s planning systems. 

(c) Applications under the delegation will be tracked, filed and reported in the City’s 
planning systems so that both Council and the Heritage Council of NSW have a 
clear record of all decisions made under the delegation. 

4



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 21 October 2019 
 

Risks 

12. Risks associated with the delegation are considered to be minimal. 

13. The Planning Assessment Unit does not anticipate that this delegation will result in any 
increase to the number of appeals, or the resources required to deal with them. 

Social / Cultural / Community 

14. This delegation will make it easier and quicker for members of the community to 
conserve and maintain their heritage places within the legal requirements of the NSW 
Heritage Act. 

Environmental 

15. This delegation will result in timely maintenance and conservation of State Heritage 
Register listed heritage places and improve the attractiveness and heritage 
significance of Sydney. 

Economic 

16. The delegation will reduce the time and complexity of the exemption and approval 
processes for minor works to heritage places.  This is likely to save applicants money 
that can be better spent on the conservation works themselves. 

Budget Implications 

17. The direct costs (approximately $125,000) of the additional staff member required to 
peform the delegated funcitions of the Heritage Council of NSW will be substantially 
offset by fees charged for exemptions and minor applications.  These fees have 
already been included in the City of Sydney fees and charges schedule for the 
2018/19 financial year. 

18. This cost has already been approved and allowed for in the establishment budget of 
the Planning Assessment Unit for 2018-2021. 

Relevant Legislation 

19. Heritage Act 1977 Sections 57(2), 21 and 169. 

20. Local Government Act 1993 Section 381. 

Critical Dates / Time Frames 

21. There are no critical dates.  If Council resolves to accept the delegation, the Instrument 
of Delegation will progress to NSW Parliamentary Counsel for gazettal.  Staff 
resources, fees and appropriate processes will be in place to take up the functions as 
soon as gazettal occurs. 

5



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 21 October 2019 
 

Options 

22. If the Council does not approve the making of this delegation the current process will 
remain in place. This will mean there is no opportunity to increase the efficiency of 
assessment of applications in relation to places on the State Heritage Register.  

Public Consultation 

23. Consultation has taken place between City officers and representatives of Millers Point 
and Glebe heritage groups. 

Conclusion 

24. Taking up the delegation will improve the efficiency of the approval process for 
applicants who are seeking to carry out minor works to their properties at minimal cost 
to the City. It is recommended that Council approve the making of the delegation to the 
nominated positions. 

GRAHAM JAHN, AM 

Director City Planning, Development and Transport 

Tony Smith, Urban Design and Heritage Manager 

6



Attachment A 

Instrument of Delegation – Heritage Act 
1997 (NSW) – Order under Section 169 and 

Section 21  

 

  

 

7



Page 1 of 2 
 

 

INSTRUMENT OF DELEGATION UNDER THE HERITAGE ACT 1977 
 

The Heritage Council of New South Wales: 
a) revokes the “Delegation of Functions of Heritage Council of NSW’ signed by the 

Chair, Heritage Council on 21 December 2001, and the “Delegation of Certain 
Archaeological Functions of Heritage Council of NSW” signed by the Chair, Heritage 
Council on 21 December 2001; and 

b) delegates the functions of the Heritage Council of New South Wales arising under 
each statutory provision specified in Column 1 of Table A below (as amended from 
time to time) and as described in Column 2 of Table A below subject to the 
Conditions and/or Limitations specified in Column 3 of Table A below and the 
General Limitations below to the following Council: 

i. City of Sydney. 
 

 
Power under which this delegation is made 
This delegation is made under section 169(3) of the Heritage Act 1977 with the consent of 
the Minister. 
 
Commencement 
This instrument commences on the date on which it is signed. 
 

General Limitations on the exercise of a delegated function 

The delegated functions can only be exercised where: 
a) in the opinion of the Council, the application if approved, would not materially 

affect the significance of that item as an item of the environmental heritage;   

b) an application does not affect an Historic Shipwreck;  

c) an application relates to a property located within a Council’s area; and  

d) there is no exemption under section 57(2) of the Heritage Act 1977 or a heritage 

agreement made under the Heritage Act that applies to the application.  

 
Definitions 

In this Instrument: 

area  has the same meaning as in the Local Government Act 1993. 

Council  has the same meaning as in the Local Government Act 1993.  

Historic Shipwreck means the remains of any ship (including any articles associated with the 

ship): 

a) that have been situated in State waters, or otherwise within the limits of the State, for 

75 years or more, or 

b) that are the subject of a historic shipwrecks protection order.  

  
 

 
………………………………… 
FRANK HOWARTH 
Chair 
Heritage Council of New South Wales 
Date: 15 March 2019 

 

8



Page 2 of 2 
 

 

Table A Heritage Act 1977 
 

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 

Section Short Description Conditions/Limitations 

62 To take into consideration 
the factors in section 62 
when determining an 
application for approval in 
respect of an item or land.  

 

63(1) 
63(1A) 
63(2) 
63(3) 
63(4) 

To determine an 
application made under 
section 60, by granting 
approval either 
unconditionally or subject 
to conditions, or by 
refusing an approval.  

This function can only be exercised by a Council for 
the following classes of works affecting archaeological 
relics or locally significant archaeology, not including 
Historic Shipwrecks:  
a. monitoring where there is an expectation of only 

minor archaeological remains and supervision is 
required primarily to record archaeological 
information; 

b. test excavation where small-scale excavation is 
undertaken on a site to determine the extent and 
preservation of a larger archaeological resource; 
or 

c.  minor archaeological works.  

65A To modify approvals to 
vary any aspect of the 
original approval or correct 
a minor error, 
misdescription or 
miscalculation.  

 

141 To determine an 
application for an 
excavation permit. 

This function can only be exercised by a Council for 
the following classes of works affecting archaeological 
relics or locally significant archaeology, not including 
Historic Shipwrecks:  
a. monitoring where there is an expectation of only 

minor archaeological remains and supervision is 
required primarily to record archaeological 
information; 

b. test excavation where small-scale excavation is 
undertaken on a site to determine the extent and 
preservation of a larger archaeological resource; 
or 

c.  minor archaeological works.  

144(b) To vary the conditions of a 
permit where a permit has 
been issued subject to 
conditions. 

This function can only be exercised by a Council for 
the following classes of works affecting archaeological 
relics or locally significant archaeology, not including 
Historic Shipwrecks:  
a. monitoring where there is an expectation of only 

minor archaeological remains and supervision is 
required primarily to record archaeological 
information; 

b. test excavation where small-scale excavation is 
undertaken on a site to determine the extent and 
preservation of a larger archaeological resource; 
or 

c. minor archaeological works. 

 

9



Attachment B 

Instrument of Delegation – Heritage Act 
1997 (NSW) – Order under Section 57 (2) 

 

  

 

10



Heritage Act 1977
Heritage Act 1977

Heritage (Amendment Exemption) Order 2019

11



National Parks and Wildlife Act 1974

Papers

Papers

National Parks and Wildlife Act 1974

12



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 21 October 2019 
 

 

Fire Safety Reports 

File No: S105001.002 

Summary 

The City has received inspection reports with recommendations from Fire and Rescue NSW 
in relation to inspections carried out on buildings located within the City’s local government 
area. 

Fire and Rescue NSW has powers under the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 
1979 (the Act) to carry out inspections of buildings and it is required to forward its findings to 
the City. 

Fire and Rescue NSW reports received by the City are required to be tabled before Council. 
Council is then required to determine whether or not to exercise its power to issue a fire 
safety order under Division 9.3 and Schedule 5 of the Act (previously section 121B of the 
Act). 

This determination may be made at the next meeting of Council held after the tabling of the 
Fire and Rescue NSW reports. 

Attached are details of the reports received by the City from Fire and Rescue NSW that are 
required to be tabled. 

The attachments deal with a specific property and include the Fire and Rescue NSW report 
and the findings (preliminary or final) by the City’s Investigation Officer, along with other 
documentation relevant to that property. 

A recommendation is made in the attachment setting out the action that is recommended to 
be the most appropriate to take in the circumstances. 

  

1

Item 3.



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 21 October 2019 
 

 

Recommendation 

It is resolved that Council: 

(A) note the contents of the Fire Safety Report Summary Sheet, as shown at Attachment 
A to the subject report;  

(B) note the inspection reports by Fire and Rescue NSW, as shown at Attachments B to F 
of the subject report; 

(C) exercise its power under the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 to 
issue a Fire Safety Order on the owners of 1 Kings Cross Road, Darlinghurst, as 
detailed in Attachment B to the subject report; 

(D) exercise its power under the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 to 
issue a Fire Safety Order on the owners of 1 Macquarie Place, Sydney, as detailed in 
Attachment C to the subject report; 

(E) exercise its power under the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 to 
issue a Fire Safety Order on the owners of 31 Market Street, Sydney, as detailed in 
Attachment D to the subject report;; 

(F) exercise its power under the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 to 
issue a Fire Safety Order on the owners of 44-62 Castlereagh Street, Sydney, as 
detailed in Attachment E to the subject report;; 

(G) exercise its power under the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 to 
issue a Fire Safety Order on the owners of 96-118 Gloucester Street, The Rocks, as 
detailed in Attachment F to the subject report;; 

(H) exercise its power under the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 to 
issue a Fire Safety Order as recommended by the City's Investigation Officer to 
address the identified fire safety deficiencies in 76-78 Liverpool Street Sydney, as 
detailed in Attachment G to the subject report. 

Attachments 

Attachment A. Fire Safety Report Summary Sheet  

Attachment B. Inspection Report - 1 Kings Cross Road, Darlinghurst 

Attachment C. Inspection Report - 1 Macquarie Place, Sydney 

Attachment D. Inspection Report - 31 Market Street, Sydney 

Attachment E. Inspection Report - 44-62 Castlereagh Street, Sydney 

Attachment F. Inspection Report - 96-118 Gloucester Street, The Rocks 

Attachment G. Inspection Report - 76-78 Liverpool Street, Sydney  

2



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 21 October 2019 
 

 

Background 

1. The City receives inspection reports and recommendations from Fire and Rescue 
NSW in relation to inspections carried out on buildings located within the City's local 
government area.  

2. Under the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (the Act), Fire and 
Rescue NSW has the power to carry out inspections of certain buildings to determine if 
the building has adequate provision for fire safety and/or is compliant with legislation. 

3. On average, the City receives approximately 50 or more such reports each year. They 
can be prompted by reports from the Police or other people who have a concern 
relating to fire safety in a building. 

4. When Fire and Rescue NSW carries out such an inspection, a report and any 
recommendations must be provided to the City. 

5. Under the Act, Council is then required to table the report and make a determination 
as to whether it will exercise its power to issue a Fire Safety Order 1 or 2 in Schedule 
5, Part 2 of the Act. Fire Safety Order 1 requires a person to do, or stop doing, certain 
specified things to improve fire safety; Fire Safety Order 2 requires a person to cease 
conducting an activity on premises where that activity constitutes, or is likely to 
constitute, a life-threatening hazard or a threat to public health or public safety. 

6. Attached are the details of the reports received from Fire and Rescue NSW, including 
recommendations for further action. The properties have also been reviewed by the 
City’s Health and Building Unit. 

7. Personal information has been redacted from these reports in accordance with the 
Privacy and Personal Information Protection Act 1998. 

8. Due to a transcription error in the 9 September 2019 Fire Safety Reports, the Council 
Resolution in relation to 76-78 Liverpool Street, Sydney was to not issue a Fire Safety 
Order. Recommendation (H) above rectifies the error and recommends that Council 
exercise its power to issue a Fire Safety Order as recommended by the City's 
Investigation Officer for 76-78 Liverpool Street, Sydney. 

Relevant Legislation 

9. Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 

GRAHAM JAHN, AM 

Director City Planning, Development and Transport 

George Lim, Late Night and Licensed Premises Specialist 

3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



Officer template-cl.17 (2) Report 

 Cl. 17 of Schedule 5 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979/1 Macquarie Street, Sydney/October 2019-CM                  Page 1 of 3 

Council investigation officer Inspection and Recommendation Report 
Clause 17(2) of Schedule 5, of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 

1979 (the Act) 
 

File:  CSM 2144502                         Officer: M. Merlino       Date: 10/9/2019 
 
Premises: 1 Macquarie Place, Sydney NSW 2000 “The Gateway” 
 
Executive Summary:  
 
Council received correspondence from the Commissioner of Fire and Rescue NSW (FRNSW) on 
21 August 2019 in relation to the subject premises with respect to matters of fire safety. 

The premises consists of a 50 storey building (including 4 below ground levels) used for retail, 
commercial offices and carpark with an approximate height of 140m and is known as “The 
Gateway”.   

FRNSW raised issues relating to the buildings existing fire hydrant system and fire sprinkler 
system which was originally installed to meet the applicable standard at the time of installation. 
FRNSW have advised that they no longer use portable relay pumps for internal booster relay 
connections for the hydrant and sprinkler system. The subject buildings fire hydrant system and fire 
sprinkler system currently relies upon the use of portable relay pumps.  
 
An inspection of the premises undertaken by a Council investigation officer in the presence of 
Senior Facilities managers revealed that while there were no significant fire safety issues occurring 
within the building, the buildings fire hydrant system and sprinkler system relies on the use of 
portable relay booster pumps by FRNSW to provide adequate pressure and flows to hydrants and 
sprinklers in each pressure zone of the building. FRNSW have advised that the use of portable 
relay booster pumps no longer suit the operational needs of FRNSW. 
 
In this regard, Council investigations have revealed that the premises are deficient in fire safety 
and egress provisions when considering the comments provided from FRNSW in the following 
areas:  
 
(i) Inadequate fire hydrant system as it relies on the use of portable relay booster pumps; 
 
(ii) Inadequate fire sprinkler system as it relies on the use of portable relay booster pumps;  
 
Accordingly, Council investigations have revealed that the premises are deficient in the provisions 
for fire safety and that an Order 2, under Part 2 of Schedule 5 of the Environmental Planning and 
Assessment Act, 1979 is required to be issued so as to ensure and promote adequate facilities for 
fire safety/fire safety awareness. 
 
Observation of the external features of the building did not identify the existence of combustible 
composite cladding on the façade of the building.  
 
 
Chronology:  
 

Date Event 
21/08/2019 FRNSW correspondence received regarding premises 1 Macquarie Place, Sydney. 

 
10/9/2019 An inspection of the subject premises was undertaken by a Council officer in the presence 

of Senior Facilities Managers of the building and revealed the following deficiencies: 
1. The fire hydrant relies on the use of portable relay booster pumps contrary to FRNSW 

correspondence. 

15



Officer template-cl.17 (2) Report 

 Cl. 17 of Schedule 5 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979/1 Macquarie Street, Sydney/October 2019-CM                  Page 2 of 3 

2. The sprinkler system relies on the use of portable relay booster pumps contrary to 
FRNSW correspondence. 

 
 

FIRE AND RESCUE NSW REPORT: 
 
References: [BFS19/1962(7812); 2019/422191] 
 
Fire and Rescue NSW conducted an inspection of the subject premises after receiving an enquiry 
about “Mid-level booster point requiring portable pumps to be brought to the site by FRNSW” on 17 
June 2019. 
 
Issues: 
 
The report from FRNSW detailed a number of issues, in particular noting: 
 

1. Previous adopted Australian Standards for fire hydrants permitted the use of an internal 
booster connection for portable relay pumps to be installed in buildings over 75m in height 
to provide pressurised water for firefighting operations. FRNSW advise that the use of 
portable relay pumps no longer suit the operational needs of FRNSW; 
  

2. The fire sprinkler system incorporates internal booster connections installed on various 
levels of the building for the connection of portable relay pumps. The purpose of these 
internal boosters is to provide a pressurised water source for the fire sprinkler system to 
operate on the upper levels of the building. FRNSW advise that the use of portable relay 
pumps no longer suit the operational needs of FRNSW. 

 
FRNSW Recommendations: 
 
FRNSW have made a number of recommendations within their report. In general FRNSW have 
requested that Council: 
 

1. Inspect the subject premises and take action to have the identified fire safety issues 
appropriately addressed 
 

2. Upgrade the fire hydrant system to operate without the need for a portable relay pump to 
meet the requirements of the current AS2419.1; 
 

3. Upgrade the automatic fire sprinkler system to operate without the need for a portable relay 
pump to meet the requirements of the current AS2118.  

 
4. Advise them in writing of its determination in relation to this matter in accordance with the 

provisions of clause 17(4) of Schedule 5 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment 
Act 1979 
 

5. In its capacity as the regulatory authority take action to have the abovementioned items 
appropriately addressed. 

 
 

 
  

COUNCIL INVESTIGATION OFFICER RECOMMENDATIONS:  
Issue 
Order(NOI) 

Issue 
emergency 
Order 

Issue a 
compliance letter 
of instruction 

Cited 
Matters 
rectified 

Undertake 
compliance action 
in response to 
issued Council 
correspondence 

Continue with 
compliance actions 
under the current 
Council Order 

Other  (to 
specify) 

16



Officer template-cl.17 (2) Report 

 Cl. 17 of Schedule 5 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979/1 Macquarie Street, Sydney/October 2019-CM                  Page 3 of 3 

 
 
As a result of a site inspection undertaken by Council investigation officers it is recommended that 
Council exercise its powers to give a notice of intention (NOI) for an Order 2, under Part 2 of 
Schedule 5 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979 to address the fire safety 
deficiencies identified by FRNSW and Council’s building officer.  
 
The issue of a fire safety order will ensure that suitable fire safety systems are in position 
throughout the building to provide improved and adequate provisions for fire safety 

 
That the Commissioner of FRNSW be advised of Council’s actions and outcomes. 
 
Referenced documents: 
No# Document type Trim reference 
A1. Fire and Rescue NSW report 2019/434953-01 
A2. Locality Plan  2019/434953-02 
A3 Attachment cover sheet 2019/434953-03 
 
 
Trim Reference: 2019/434953   CSM reference No#: 2144502 

 
 
 
 

Pin’s:  
Pin not issued due to the owners technically not making a breach in 
relation to matters of fire safety. Order is required purely due to a 
change in operational requirements of FRNSW. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



Attachment G 

Council Officer Inspection Report -

76-78 Liverpool Street, Sydney

47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54


	Agenda
	1 Disclosures of Interest
	2 Delegation to the City of Sydney under the NSW Heritage Act 1977
	Attachment A - Instrument of Delegation - Heritage Act 1977 (NSW) - Order under Section 169 and Section 21
	Attachment B - Instrument of Delegation - Heritage Act 1977 (NSW) - Order under Section 57(2)

	3 Fire Safety Reports
	Attachment A - Fire Safety Report Summary Sheet
	Attachment B - Inspection Report -1 Kings Cross Road, Darlinghurst
	Attachment C - Inspection Report - 1 Macquarie Place, Sydney
	Report - Council officer clause 17 sch 5 Inspection and Recommendation Report-March 2018.pdf
	Council received correspondence from the Commissioner of Fire and Rescue NSW (FRNSW) on 21 August 2019 in relation to the subject premises with respect to matters of fire safety.
	The premises consists of a 50 storey building (including 4 below ground levels) used for retail, commercial offices and carpark with an approximate height of 140m and is known as “The Gateway”.


	Attachment D - Inspection Report - 31 Market Street, Sydney
	Attachment E - Inspection Report - 44-62 Castlereagh Street, Sydney
	Attachment F - Inspection Report - 96-118 Gloucester Street, The Rocks
	Attachment G - Inspection Report - 76-78 Liverpool Street, Sydney




